NETHERAVON PARISH COUNCIL

Minutes of the Meeting held in the Phoenix Hall On Thursday, 14th July, 2022 at 7.00 p.m.

DDECENT	Clla D. Avrling	Clasimason
PRESENT	Cllr. R. Ayling	Chairman
	Cllr. F. Collison	
	Cllr. C. Coslett	
	Cllr. B. Covil	
	Cllr. Mrs. M. Mitchell	
	Cllr. Mrs. P. Panther	
	Cllr. Mrs. P. Perry	
	Cllr. S. Perry	
	Cllr. P. Mackay	
In Attendance	Cllr. Ian Blair-Pilling	Wiltshire Councillor
	Mrs. Mary Towle	Clerk of the Council

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

There were no members of the public in attendance.

REPORT BY WILTSHIRE COUNCILLOR

Report by Wiltshire Council attached to minutes.

22/31 APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Cllr. David Burke

22/32 <u>DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST</u>

Cllrs. Steve and Pam Perry declared interest in Agenda Item 8.4.

22/33 MINUTES

It was **RESOLVED** that the minutes of the meeting held on 9th June 2022 be accepted as a true record.

22/34 FINANCE

1. Authorisation of Cheques

It was **RESOLVED** to approve the cheques for June/July 2022.

BHIB - Insurance	£814.76
Avon Valley Media	£307.00
Phoenix Hall	£10.00
Hurdcott Landscapes Ltd	£26.32
SSE – Village Clock	£48.21

£94.90
£1070.04
£94.90
£172.80
£39.92
£66.80
£246.00
£310.32
£10.00
£93.60
£48.76
£50.00
£317.00
£150.00
£30.00

2. Bank Reconciliation

The Balance at the Bank as at 1st July, 2022 is £23,253.92

22/35 COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. Planning

Cllr. Coslett reported that there are no new planning applications

2. Flooding and Adverse Weather

The Chairman reported that RGV have supplied bins for the salt in the Emergency Store and filled them up with the salt in the faulty sacks.

3. Highways (plus Parish Steward)

The Clerk reported that the Parish Steward cut back vegetation and filled potholes during his last visit to Netherayon.

4. CATG

The Chairman has agreed to attend the next CATG meeting. He will raise the subject of Stagg's Lane road sign and a possible one-way system at the top of Mill Road. We are still awaiting the results of the speed assessment.

5. Cemetery /Enhancement

Cllr. Coslett reported that the allotments have been judged. The hanging baskets, the sunflowers and the front gardens are being judged at the end on July.

The Clerk reported that she has contacted a mole catcher who has been to the Cemetery and has dealt with the moles.

6. Recreation

It was **RESOLVED** that the long grass in the Millennium Park be cut by the contractors. The Clerk reported that it is not possible to find anyone with equipment to cut and bale the grass this year.

It was agreed that the Clerk should approach Wiltshire Council to find out whether we can arrange to have the equipment in the Old School Close play area painted and a fresh load of bark put down as surface. She will also find out more about the possible 7 year lease.

7. Allotment

Cllr. Perry agreed to see the two new allotment holders at the Piggott Close allotments to discuss their difficulties with keeping the allotments clear of weeds.

8. Rights of Way

The Clerk reported that the Village Handyman has strimmed along the Corfe path and that Hurdcott Landscaps have cut the Old Wilton Cart track.

The Clerk suggested that in the autumn we have a working party to cut back the foliage on the corner of Stagg's Lane so that the milestone can be seen.

Representatives on other groups:

a. Phoenix Hall

The Phoenix Hall held its AGM on Tuesday 12th July. No members of the public attended. The audited financial report was delivered and accepted by those present.

The PH has a new Chairman, Mr. Steve Perry, who takes over from Mr. Charles Coslett. Mrs. Caroline Aubrey-Fletcher is Vice-Chair, Mr. Alan Brown - Secretary, Mr. Nigel Jackaman - Treasurer.

The installation of solar panels for the roof of the Phoenix Hall is ongoing, currently awaiting information from WC whether Planning Permission is required because the hall is in a Conservation Area

A new plumbed-in water heater is being sought, the current one is beyond repair.

Charles Coslett, Chairman Phoenix Hall Committee

b. Stonehenge Area Board

The Clerk reported that she attended the last Area Board meeting which was held in Woodford Village Hall. The meeting was well attended with representatives from a large number of parishes. There was discussion on Jubilee events around the

Community Area and the Clerk was asked to report on Netheravon events especially the Beacon as the Area Board part funded that event.

The next meeting will be on 22nd September, 2022.

c. Jubilee Committee

Cllr. Mrs. Mitchell reported that she has sold all the surplus Jubilee mugs and will be giving the Jubilee Committee £320 for their funds. This means that the Jubilee Committee covered all expenses for the Street Party and made a small profit.

22/36 REPORT by the Clerk

- It was agreed that the Council would organise an event to officially open the Platinum Jubilee Fitness Equipment at the Millennium Park. We would hold this in September date to be confirmed and would serve bacon rolls. We will encourage people to come and have a 'bacon roll and work it off with exercise'.
- The Clerk reported that a photo and report on the Beacon event was in the Stonehenge Trader this month.

22/37 CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED

1. No correspondence has been received.

All email correspondence is passed onto Councillors immediately.

22/38 GENERAL PARISH MATTERS

No one raised any General Parish Matters

22/39 DATE OF NEXT COUNCIL MEETING 8h September 2022 at 7.00 pm

Signed	Chairman	Date
--------	----------	------

Report by Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling Avon Valley Division – July 22

SPTA Fires

It is a relief that after a huge effort by the Army and civil fire and rescue services the recent extensive fires on the Plain have been put out. We all appreciate that the military need to train and are used to the normal range of activity and noise, but I am concerned that all possible lessons are learned and am pursuing this through our Public Health officers and their established liaison with MoD authorities.

Cost of Living

I would like to pass on the briefing given by the leader of Wiltshire Council at our June Cabinet meeting summarising the Council's work to combat the recent increases in the cost of living. I appreciate it is a long and complex read, but there may be nuggets in it that are relevant and may help some of those most in need. Please draw on it and come back to me on any aspect you wish. I would also highlight that while much of the support is in the gift of Central government we can and do lobby where we see a need to. Through our MPs we have recently raised the issue of those living in park homes who may not benefit from the energy refunds

Richard Clewer briefed us

"There is a range of support we offer or administer already in place that we are promoting, alongside support and initiatives being undertaken nationally.

These include:

- · Providing the Local Welfare Provision, funded by Wiltshire Council, with £100,000 set aside for 2022/23. This is a scheme for those in crisis and the number of claims and recipients of this scheme are typically 1,000 per annum.
- · The Council Tax Reduction Scheme, which currently supports 26,000 households (10k of which are pensioners). We have allocated a further £140,000 to a Discretionary Council Tax Reduction Scheme, for those struggling most with the payment of council tax.
- · Administering housing benefit, currently delivered to 12,000 households, as well as the Discretionary Housing Payment Scheme where we have already committed almost 50% of the £330,000 available.
- Delivering the first part of the Household Support Fund, and we were allocated £2.7m for the first six months of this year and there is no need for people to apply to Wiltshire Council, as eligible people are identified and contacted.

This is being deployed to support:

- Pensioners in receipt of council tax reduction and pension credit with £133.
- Vulnerable working age households with £66.
- Food payments during school holidays for those on free school meals or with early years pupil premium, or other vulnerable families (working with schools).

- Vouchers for food and utility bills for those in temporary accommodation, supported accommodation or those recently moved into permanent accommodation.
- Food banks and linked projects to ensure they can purchase and provide food to those most in need.

We are also planning use of the fund for September to March, for which we have been allocated a similar amount as the first half of this year.

- · Offering the Holiday Activities and Food programme (known as FUEL in Wiltshire), which will run again in Wiltshire over summer 2022. FUEL is a free holiday activity and food project that offers those on free school meals the opportunity to take part in a range of fun activities and receive a nutritious meal during school holiday periods.
- · Paying the energy rebate, to those living in houses in council tax Bands A-D. This has already been received by over 100,000 households. We have been chasing bank details for over 40,000 households in order to issue them with payment. The final tranche of letters inviting them to claim were delivered on 25 May.
- · A webpage has been set up outlining the full range of What can we help you with? Wiltshire Council and signposting to other organisations as appropriate. There is also a national version Cost of Living Support Get government support to help with the cost of living

The announcement from the Chancellor last month was also further welcome news and this support in response to the short-term crisis is vital.

It also means residents in Wiltshire will be receiving more than £220m through the various schemes in place.

As well as this direct support on the cost of living, we are supporting a range of initiatives that address rising fuel prices through energy efficiency.

These include:

- · Warm and Safe Wiltshire, which provides a free and impartial energy advice service and aims to reduce fuel poverty in Wiltshire.
- · A Home Upgrade Grant scheme which will open this summer delivering over £3m of support on insulation and renewable energy.
- \cdot Through the Green Homes Grant we are delivering a £4.4m scheme that offers households an income of £30,000 or less, and living in a property that is rated D, E, F or G for energy efficiency, the chance to access up to £10,000 for improvements such as insulation, solar panels and double glazing.
- · We continue to invest in our council housing stock through the retrofit programme, helping some of our most vulnerable residents save money on their energy bills. The aim is to retrofit 500 homes a year and complete all 5000 of our council homes by 2030.
- · In May, we launched Solar Together, a joint buying scheme that allows communities to purchase solar production and storage at the right price.

· We continue to promote other energy efficiency measures by social media, such as the £5k grants for heat pumps which began last month.

I have held discussions with my Cabinet and our partners in other public service and voluntary sector organisations on what more we can do individually and collectively – including promotion of existing support, widening the scope of existing schemes, better targeting of vulnerable clients with support, tackling the risk of exploitation, reinvigorating initiatives such as car sharing and will continue to keep this area under review."

Enhanced Highways Maintenance Funding

Some good news on highways and fighting fly tipping

The appearance of our roads and verges is important to the public and local communities, but with funding limitations it has not always been possible to deliver the desired levels of routine maintenance on the network as safety maintenance has had to take priority.

At this month's Cabinet meeting we agreed to increase funding by £683,000 annually over the next three years to improve the safety and appearance of the highway network.

- Funding for road marking and lining will increase by £200,000 annually to address the backlog and make an enormous difference to the appearance and safety of the network. This will be used to renew give way, roundabout markings and stop lines, predominantly using 'hand' gangs within the urban areas and a programme of machine lining on the inter-urban roads, especially the A roads. The programme will be focused on an area-by-area basis which will see the lining brought up to standard over the next three years.
- The budget for gully emptying will be increased by £333,000 annually to pay for another specialist gully
 emptying machine with jetting facility, supporting traffic management and additional equipment to be
 deployed to improve drainage. The provision of this fourth machine will enable the frequency of gully
 emptying to be increased.
- **Litter enforcement** will be improved by investing £150,000 annually to provide monitoring cameras, three additional enforcement staff, and an advertising and awareness campaign.